LINCOLN COUNTY
POPULAR RECREATIONAL AREA
of
LONG STANDING

Lincoln County, considered by itself, and judged by the numbers who visit
there, is the leading, genersl recreation ares of the entire Oregon Coest. It has
en ocesn frontage of sixty odd miles, with miles_of splendid besches, several apec—
tacular headlands and a number of other netursl features, 211 of outstanding scenic
worth that give this county's coast a great diversity of seaboard interest.

islong this county shoreland there are eighteen state-owned recreationsel
units sggregating 785.85 acres, each of individusl merit, and practicslly sll of
them touching the ocesn shore.

The seashore from the north county line to Gleneden Beach, & distence
of neerly seventeen miles, is a wide send beach, which is for the most part resdily
accescible from the closely peralleling highway. Fronting this streteh of beach,
and along both sides of the highway many permanent residences and casuel summer
homes are to be seen, 2lso there is the greatest aggregation of smell business
places catering to the needs and wents of visitors, thet is tn he found concentrated
in 8 like distence anywhere along the entire Oregon cosst, giving to this aree &
simuleted Coney Islend atmosphera,

The center of this sctivity is spproximetsly one hundred miles from
Portland and seventy-two miies Trom Salem, by the wey of the delightful Salmon River
Highway, placing both of these cities ond their environments within easy driving
distance of this cozst area which sttrrcts so meny weekend visitors.

4 short distance south of Gleneden Beach the physiogrezphic features of

the coast line change from the send besch type to & steep, rocky, surfbound shore,

in pleces rising to high promontories which efford magnificent coest line penorzmas.
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Along this rocky shore, from Boiler Bay, to and including the Nevil's Punch Borl,
are four state parks. Beyond the Devil's Punch Bowl, the bezch type resumes end,
interrapted by & short intervel of rocky shore, sweeps along to AgeteResch, whose
sends znd gravels zre noted for their numerous fins agates, then connects with the
Yaquine beach, both of them long since highly fevored snd extensively pstronized by
the psople of the comperatively near upper Willamette Valley section.

leflecting thz popularity of Lincoln County &s s recreationsl center, in
1940, the high yesr for state perk attendance, the careteker of the eight principal
parks of this county, reported en estimated total of 1,182,975 visitors, distributed
as follows: Boiler Bay 219,10%; DePos Bey 280,:75; Rocky Creek 69,702; Ctter Crest
217,335; Devills Punch Bowl 11%,7%%; Yaguine Bay 202,581; Seal Rocks 11%5,577; and
Yachats 66,445. The total was fifty-seven per cent of the reported, slso estimated,
attendance for the state parks of the entire stete. These psrks, & bsrometer for
ell state parks, showed a decline in 1941, fell off again in 1942, with a further
sharp drop in 1943, but in numbers reported, still far shead of any other group
of state parks, despite coastzl defense inhibitions end wa?—time restrictions.
HISTORY

There is no written record of who were he first white men to touch on
Lincoln County'!s shores. Captain Gray sailed the Lady Washington into Tillsmook
Bay 23 cerly es August 14, 1788, and there is some evidence thet white men had been
in Yaquine Bay that year or soon thereafter. Credence is given to this by the
finding of humen bones half buried in the sends of the bay shore, near which were
reccovered copper coins stamped "English Trade Iokens 1788", and 2 brass handled
cutlass such es were cerried by British sesmen of that period, but when or by whom
these relics werz left is only conjecture.

The Hudson's Bay Company treders visited here as early ss 1826, and no

doubt others traversed this cosst at infrequent,'later intervals. In 1849 Licutenant



Talbot, & United States engineer, seeking a passsgeway over the Cosst Renge, traveled
from the Wilismette Velley to Yaquine Bay and thence to Alsea Bay. His report is
probably the first written description of these locslities by en Americen. In 1855,
Saruel Case, a veteran of the Indien wars, crossed the Coast Range end seitled where
Newvport is now. That same year, the Siletz Indian Reservation was established, with
Lieutensnt Philip H. Sheridsn in cherge, who built e blockhouse where the present
Olsonville sddition to Newport now stends. The site chosen for the blackhouss wes a
tribel graveyard, which was the only suiteble cleasred land evailsble. Resting on
scaffolds in this sres were forty or fifty canoes which held the “ead. The Indisns
objected to the canoes being disturbsd, but after an all dey parley they finally
consented to the canoes, with the reneinsg, being set efloat upon the bay t» be
carried out to ses. helatives were assembled end with all the weird rituals of the
tribal ceremonialsg £ﬁe canoes were launched upon the bay where the ebbing tide wes
strong and, with the bugler sounding teps in the sﬁnset glow of = quiet evening, the
fleet of canoes wos swept over the bar and fer out on their last voyage upon the
brozd Pscific to return no more. These were probsbly a part of the then strong Ya-
ko-nen tribe, who at one time occupied fifty-six villeges, distributed around Yequina
Bay end slong the river sbove. They were the only natives of Oregon who hed e
language exclusively their own and lived unto themselves, jealously guarding their
"illahee" and ail theat perteained to it.

The physiographic conditions and nsatursl resources of this section sre
what made the Is-ko-nans e strong, self-sustsining tribe, end these factors have
mede Newport & prosperous town ond.its surroundings en sppealing, lone enduring, re-
cregtionel area. This is shown in the, always good, Yaquina State Perk sitendance
record; vhich reached its peak in 1940. When pesce is restored to the world, this

locality will again become the mecce of other thousands of plessure seekers.



In 1856 Lieutensnt Sheriden opened a treil for the pesssge of oxcarts
from Fort Hoskins, in kings V:lley, to Siletz. That same yesr he suppressed a re-
servetion rebellion ceused by hunger and resentment, then drove s small herd of
cattle from the #illemette Volley to the reservation for food for the Indians.

The first oceszn-going vessel to harbor on the Lincoln County coast was
the Galemet, which voysged from San Frencisco and entered Yaquina Bay in 1856 with
supplies for the troops st the Siletz blockhouse. Msjor interest was not aroused
in the Yaquins Bay locality until 1861, when e Captein Spenser discovered an sbun-
dance of oyster beds in the bay. Sreculstors began coming into the settlement
from Sen Francisco snd the oyster business flourished for 2 time, with many schooners
in the trade with the California city.- |

By 1865 faquine Bay wes attraciing meny Willemette Valley people for
seashore outings. To teke care of the increasing influx of visitors, Semuel Cace
built the Ocean House, the first hotel on the bey. The Abbey House and Fountain
House were opened in 1871, and Yaquina Bay hss flourished as a resort area ever
since. While there were occasional early viszitors to the Alses Bay section, there
were only infrenuent visitetions to the north end of Linecoln Caunty.

The sbove historicel information from Oregon Historicel Quarterlys, The
Commumwesl th gnd the Oregon edition of the W.P.A. Writers Praject.

The present Salmon River Highway, vhich so meny recreationists use in
going to and from the coest, follows the generzl route of the ancient Indian trail
from the vicinity of Velley Junction and Grende Ronde to the Lincoln County recrea-
tionsl zrees.

From beslie M. Scott's "Military Beginnings of the Salmon River Highway",
an address delivered July 19, 1934, at the dedication of s tablet in memory of the
builders of the highway, and published in the Oregon Historicel Cusrterly, Vilume

KLXV, September, 1934, the following is quoted:r "The trzil evidently served the
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uses of the Indiens long prior to the advent of white men. The first recovded
travel on the trall was In fugust, 183?; when the Methodist missionaries, Jason Lee
and Cyrus Shepard, accompanied by thelr brides, and Joseph Gervais, made the
journey from the mission near theatlsnd to the ocean. The trip required five days
each way snd they spent a week on the seashore. 4 month before, the two couples had
been married &t the mission". This journey, made over one hundred six years ago,
was, without question, the first recreational trip by white persbns to the cosst of
Oregon. Incidentally the two couples were also the first persons to be married
among the white race in the Northwest. Jason Lee married Miss Anna M. Pittman and

Cyrus Shepard wed”ed Miss Susan Dovning, on July 16, 1837.



BOILER BAY STATE PARK

Boller Bey Stste Park 1s the moat northerly of a series of sixteen stete-
owned parks and waysides along the Lipcoln GCounty sectisn of the Cosst Highway and
shorelend. 1t has an area of thirty-two acres, purchased from two owners. rLhe
first six acres were deeded on Novémber 19, 19z6, @nd twenty-six scres were deeded
on Merch 17, 19%6. The tracts are connected and both lie in Section 32, Towmship
8 South of Range 11 \West, W.M., seventeen miles south of the junction of the Oregon

. Coast and Salmon River Highways at Otis, which is very near the north line of the
county.

This park took its name from the so called bay it touches. Mr. i, C.
Smith of Newport, who knows much of the local history, states that the originsl
name of this "bay" wa§ "Joe Briggs Lending", after one of the first settlers in
thet locality, and in early days smsll vessels discharged csrgo there. The name
boiler Bav beceme ettached to the "bay" after the burning of the small stesmer
schooner Maerhoffer, off the coast in that neighborhaood sbout May, 1910, Later on
& section of the hulk, with the boiler attached, drifted into this roadstead. For
years afterward it was slternstely burisd and uncovered ass it was buffeted sbout by
recurring hard stor.s, until it ﬁad become of such widespread interest @nd curissity
that the "bay" beceme known by its present title and the original name is now only
a trzdition,

As the story goes, the crew sbsndoned ship and in the small bozts put
into "Big Cove", now know ss %hale Cove. One of the crew died vhile coming sshore
from the burning vessel, His greve is in the Eureks cemetery at Newport, with the
inscription "Frank Tiffeny, Steward, Schooner Marhoffer, May 18, 1910v,

In the fall of 1908 or 1909 the schooner dinnie E, Kelton, with a deck-

load of lumber, was also lost in this vieinity and Mrs. Lunn, of Lincoln Beach,
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tole ¥r. Smith thet eleven men of & crew of twenty-two were lost. Five rere
buried in the Newport cemetery.

Ihere is deep water on the northerly side of this ses-worn szlient where
smell coasting vessels did, end still do, find emergency shelter from strong north-
west winds, but this anchorsge is exposed to west and southwest winds. The south
side of the bay is shsllow, rocky and not useble as & shelter.

The park eres has s diversified surfsce. At the south end of the parls,
between the highway and seashore, there is z narrow strip of open, grassed park
land which in its northerly trend expsnds into a wider, triengular shapzd peninsula,
with the ocean on its outer side snd the rocky beay on the other, each side spproxi-
mately eight hundred feet long. Approaching the park from the north, the highway
s¥irts the rock bound basin snd swings southward on the arc of a wide, sweeping
curve, arouné the foot of o symetricslly rounded ¥noll rising sbove the highwey at
its base. On the west and southwest slopes of thé Fnoll the ridges sre grassy, the
gulches brushy. Sprucs trees of & non-commercisl typs grow on the northwest slope,
reaching over the top and down the sast side where they merge into the deep forest
beyond. 4 new, vigorous growth of young spfuce is now replacing the old trees
that were espparently fire-killed about the time the highwey wes constructed.

The low, treeless, seagirt portion of th2 park is wind swept and coaol,
sometimes cold, even in summer, when the northvest trede winds blow stesdily, but
it is & most delightful eres on quiet decys or ;hﬁn the gentle, soothing winds blow
from the southwest, end many visitors peuse to enjoy the park offerings. The re-
ports show thst the estimeted : ttendence of this park is the second highest of ths
Lincoln Gounty group.

From e scenic stendpoint, the upland of the ares is of secondary importance,

It is but & background stepping stone from which to view its ocesn front. Always
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of intgrgst is the shallow, rocky, wave—warn'basin Fhat @olds ¢ mass of shiny,
brown kelp and trailing,dark—grgén seaweed thet 1ifts and falls with the almost
spent surge end retrest of the incoming swells w.2n the seas =re moderate, but thev
become the sport of wind snd wzve when these psrtially sheltered waters are in the
tumult of hard driven sesas. The outer ocean frontage is # rugged, nffshore series
of reefs and rocks, some submerged, some awash znd others lifting well above tide,
together forming a repellant mass zgalnst which the tempestuous waves crash and
pound, only to be toséeﬁ convulsively, high in the sir, and return to their element
in & ceaseless, swaying smother of spume that fascinates its beholders and bids them
to return, agein end sgain, to visit the mothering =ea thet humens of 21l ages snd
climss Meave never forseken, and never will.

I're perk improvements were made by CCC members working cut from the
Yaquins Rav Cemp SP-7, in the Fourth Perios, Octaber 1%, 1934 to iforil 1F, 193¢
and in the Sixth Period, October 15, 19%5 to spril 1%, 1936, =nd sre 2= follows:
Guard rail, i,O?O feet; Signs and konuments, - eschy Linezl Survey 0.F5 miles; Tono-
grephic survey, 50 scres; fine grading .z zcres; Park rosd 0.8 miles and Parking
area 00 squsre yards. The park rosd end parking ares were surfeced by the State

Highway “sintensnce Department.

There are no buildings and no picnic or other facilities within the park

ETRH.,
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State Purks Hlstorlan
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RECOMMENDATIONS FOR BOILER BAY

A wider perking eres should be constructed. A cesustic latrine located
just west of the highway should be constructed. 4 trail to the top of the hill on
the eaat gide of the highway should be huilt. Three or four tables should be con-
structed on top of the hill. FEnough land north of the park shouléd be purchased to
take in Boiler Lay proper. 4 sesrch for water should be made that the park may be
provided with water. Another wayside parking eres bordering the ocesn should be

constructed at the southern border of the park.

o r .
‘6'{’ 4;: /’/_";:'_o‘—( M Y
S. H. Boardmen
State Perks Superintendent

SHE:ao
4-5-45



DE POE BAY

The original De Poe Bay State Park contained three zcres of shore land
parslleling the ocean side of the Oregon Coast Highway for a2 distonce of twelve
hundred feet or more, with an average width of epproximately one hundred feet. It
is located in Lot 6, Section & snd Lot 1, Section 8, Township 9 South of Renge 11
west, W.M., a mile or two south of Boiler Bay and z highway distence of ninateen
miles south of Otis. The tract wes & gift to the state from the Sunset Investment
Company, by deed, dated Fsbruary 11, 1929,

Until 1940, this tract was practically undeveloped excepting & nerrow
strip of perking spsce. In that year the Bridge Department more than doubled the
traffic width of ths bridge and added a five foot walk on esch side. In 1941, the
useble park srea was practlcally absorbed by widening the perking space north of the
bridge, end erecting & substantlal parapet wall along its seawsrd side to afford s
greater messure of safety to sightseers.

thile classified as a state park the smsll De Poe Bay area had only a
limited amount of development, which was zbsorbed by extensive highwey improvements.
The site 1g of it=elf scenically pleasing, but its allurement is more one of
ﬂramatié interest, and no description of Linecoln Couﬁty's coastel sttractions is
complete without it being menticned.

Long before and ever since the fishermen cast their nets in the Sea of
Gellilee, wherever the toilers of the sea foregather with their creft, they attrect
and hold attention. This picturesque site 18 no exception and it holds more af in-
tense and alluring interest for the average visitor then eny other particular plsce
elong the Oregon coast.

IThe actual bay is a tiny, three-sided, ses-filled basin, roughly one

thousand feet long, its zverage width half of its length, with ¢ meen tidewzter
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area of ten or twelve acres. Generslly considered e ssfe, landlocked haven for the
small fishing craft that harbor there. 4 few yeers ago bad weather drove an wnuzusl
numeer of small fishing boats into the harbor, in advence of & storm that attained
uusual violence. Despite the length of the narrowed channel entrence, the hesvy
seas drove clear into this small cove, tore s number of the smell vessels from their
moorings, sinking or casting them high upon the limited shore, all more or less
damaged, some seriously.

dhen the fleet is snugly anchored in this usually quiet, cliff-rimmed basin,
the scene is an attractive and interesting one. These smell craft are of many types,
some pescefully swinging &t enchor, some being iced snd outfitted for a new fishing
venture, while those recently returned from the sea sre discherging their finny
catches, which ere hoisted into the warehouses perched on the aside of the cliff sd-
joining the highrey.

This setting is the rare combinetion of a smell almost lendlocked, marine
basin, partially surrownded by cliffs, which is looked down upon from the slaveted
deck of a primery highway bridge, locsted on its seawaré side, beneath which the
fishing ecraft pess as they go to and from their deep sea fishing.

It is e very unique, meritime location, its activities hish-lighted b7 the
comings and goings of the fishing vessels thru the narrow, rock-walled channel that
leads to the open sea, thelr passage benesth the bridge dramatized by the presence

of the many bridge and perapet spectators, the wetchers being especially thrilled

by the eppeesrance of & heevily laden, incoming boat. These they watch with & most
intenze interest, particularly if the sea is a bit rough, as they are skillfully
maneuvered into the nerrow sea and tide-swept entrance snd piloted thru this slender
waterway, to pass benesth the bridge and glide into the quiet watefs of their little

harbor.,
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tven for small vessels, there is little sea room in this rock bound channel
that, in one plrce, is only sbout forty feet wide. In stirring human interest, the
antrance and depsrture of the De Poe Bay fishing fleet is, in Oregon, rivaled only
by the fascinating scene of the Indians perilously, dip-netting salmon st Celilo
Falls on the Columbisa River.

Since the reconstruction of the highway bridge and the widening oflits
northerly epproach, all that is left of the originel three =zcres is a nerrow, tree-
less strip lying between the highway snd the rocky shore.

The originel CCC improvements within the ares have been practhally ob-
literated by the reeonsbtruction work which wes necessitated by the presence of so
many lingering visitors who crowded the old narrow bridge, end their cars jsmmed the
limited perking specce at i£s north end, greastly impeding traffic snd jeopardizing
the ssfety of everyone present. The new bridge, with itz wide drivewsy and smple,
rqiled walks on either side, was s grest improvement and has orevented many accidents.
4 reconstructed drinking fountain is in place znd 2 splendid flazpole, set in & sub-
stentizl, ornate rock base, wss erected in the enlerged pesrking erem, which is now
rimmed by a hesvy rock, parapet wall.

In the Oregon Historical Qusrterly, Volume XXXVII, No. 4, of December,
1936, the origin of the nsme De Poe bay is given in the following words: "How
De Poe Bay got its name is told in & letter from John Loomis to thz Oregonian of
October 9, 1936. According to Mr. Loomis the government built 2 depot in 1868 for
supplies Pr the Siletz Reservation. One of the Indisns working at the depot was
called Depot Charley. His son Robert Depot was rensmed Robert De Poe st Carlisle
Indian School, where he wss a pupil end his name wes transferred to the bey. Earlier
names for it were Hungry Harbor and Little Cove". Another name, not mentioned by

Mr. Loomis, was Wreckers Cove,

~1o- ;'If///\/f”ff'éi 'I//ZC
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RECOMMENDAITONS FOR PE POE BAY

& few more tables and benches should be constructed. The ares bhetween

the highwey and ocean bordering the Bay at the north end of the park should he

acquired.
//
X /}1’7‘1’ M"/a.,w-s.,_/'.
S. H. Boarmman
Qtate Parks Superintendent
SHB:a0
4-5-45
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ROCKY CREEE STATE PABK

This fifty-cight acre perk is made up of four parcels of land, locsted in
Sections 17, 18, 19 and 20, in Township 9 South of Range 1l %est, W.M., in Lincoln
County. The rirst tract was purchased June 15, 1926 end the last one on June 3,
1936. They ure situated on the shore line, twenty-one miles south of Otis end the
highway trsverses the park from one end to the other.. This is the third state perk
southward from the north end of the county. Rocky Creek itself is = small stresm,
closely parslleling the south boundary line, mostly outside of the perk, entering
the sea st the extreme southwest corner of the tract.

The psrk lies on both gides of the highway, the greater portion being te
the east on the slope of & rounded, rising knoll. Typical of this section of the
coast ares, much of the knoll is open grass, with shrubbery in the lower depressions,
young spruce in their upper reaches, with whitened snsgs and old, 1limby spruces, near
to snd ~n its top where the bordering trees merge into the green foreat of the coest
hills, \

The ocean side of the highwey sloves praduelly to the edge of the steep,
rocky shore, vherg the waves break heavily sgainst the cliffs, along wvhich there is
neither beach nor accessible shore land. From the mouth of Rocky Creek northward
for more than half the park distence, the narrow strip between the highwesy »n? shore
iine is &n open, somewhat rough terrazin of the common, grassy coast type, meking a
very satisfactory nsturel park surfrce thet does not require intensive development
to be usable. Beyond the parking space on the looped perk voesd, the strip between
the highway and shore line widens and has considersble low shrubbery, especially in
the depressions. Nesar the north extremity is e thicket of short bodied spruce, wind
depressed znd flat tapped, cenopying 2 small picnic area in which there iz = s£0ve

and seversl benched tables, nestling snug and comforteble out of the wind.
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e paved perk roadway leaves the highwey in the north half of the park
and lo7ps toward the oceen, its mid-distance a widened parking space, with & drink-
ing fountsin above its upper side. Directly in front of the parking space there is
a detached bit of shore lend that seems tn offer an excellent chance for sea fishing.
This is now inaccessible, bui there is & good site for a short foot bridge vhich
would meke these probable fishing rocks readily swailable, The rest of the more
than half mile loag ocean front is entirely a rock cliff, without any beach line,
North of bthe perking sprce are two stone rest rooms and a foot trail departs from
nearby, winding its way to a rustic foot bridge over a small stream, then skirts
along the shore line wall, with a thrilling section of the sverlooking cliff pro-
tected by =2 guard‘rail, on its wey to the not distant picnic srea,

The park improvements, including the grading of the park road end parking
space, were made by members of the Yaquina Bay CCC cémp, during the Fnurth Period,
Octobar, 1924 to Anril, 1935 end the Sixth Period, October, 1935 to April, 1936.

The personnel of these camps were brought from the high country, where the winters
ere c;id end the snows too deen for ~fficient winter work. Durine these tws work
periods, detechments from the mein cemp bullt the foot treil, its rustic bridge

and twelve hﬁndred feet o>f guard riil. They #lso built the two rock letrinzs, in-
stalled the water system, e sevage disposel system, gerbsze disposel pits and szt up
a camp stove with ten table and bench combinztions in the picnic eres. The nearly
hall mile of park rosd, together with two thousand squsre feet of perking spece, vere
graded by the CCC's; later sn surfaced and peved by RHighway Department forces. The
CCC'= also cleared several ecres of camp ground, moved and plented hundreds of netive
shrubs and trees, cleaned up the highway borders, reduced the menzcing fire hazard
on the slopes of the knoll, delinsated the perk boundaries and made topographic

SUrveys.



This perk 1s one of the pleasing resting spots of the ﬁincoln County
shore, for the overflow from the crowded hesches 5 few miles to the north. Its quite
spacious porking eree snd facilitated pienic pround  offering an opportunity for a
perind of peaceful relexation on an ettrective shore line thet Borders the ~cean with
ita sutlying, surf bound reefs and rock islets, and slso touches the rocky Whsle Co%e
that lies on its northerly side.

4L fine park, vwith an assured future, thet will require more extensive im-

provements and facilities in the tomorrows of pary hictory.

/" .l /‘,’i 9’.‘ - ; j‘
g/y{ (fi.q JZdiﬁ?sz%éZE"
#. A. Lengille !

Parks Historisn

Walzan
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RZCOMMENDATION® FOR ROCKY CREERK

Rocky Creeiz Park should have morz pienic teble “develooment. Iwe water
reservolr is of g dirt construction. A concrate reservoir should be constructed.
Ihet part of section 17 bordering on "Male Cove should be sequired supplementing
tne present park aree. The planting of trees should be m=de at spproprizte “uture

picnic sreas.

/o
NP A

A ) e el s vy o
! - )

S. H. Bosrdman
State Parks Superintendent

SHB:a0
4-5-45
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JQTTER CREST STATE PARK

This park of only one and s helf zcres, is in Lot %, Fection 29, Town-
ship 9 South of Range 11 West, V.M., Lincoln County. It is 2 short distance svay
from the highwsy, twenty-three miles south of Otis, and tws and a quarter niles
gouth af Rocky Creel PBaork. It is the fourth of this county group, south bound.

The property was # gift to the state by Wilbur 3. and Florence C. Redley,
deeded on Februery 20, 1978. The deed has a number of restrictive clsuszes, dne of
which prudently reserved to the vendors & smell, triangulsr point on the northrest
corner of the promontory. A point which hes the most comprehensive view of any
portion of this superb headlend. Following the transfer of title, snd the improve-
ment of the zrea by the stete, & vullding was erected by the vendors on this osub-
lying triengle of rock, which hss since heen utilized for the ssle of trinkets and
refrashments.

Situeted ztop this bald, precipitous outpost of solid rock, the park
surface is four hundred fifty-three feet (U.S.C. % G.S.) ebove sea level. While
this proud, surpessing outlo;k point is not 28 high, nor does it project into the
oce:zn es far as some coastal promontories do, its position on the cosst outline,
combined with its sheer height snd loneness, marks it ss the levmen's idesl of a
bold, sea-fronting forelend. For untold sges it has withstood the destructive
elements, while the pounding seas have wasted the adiscent shores to rocks, reefs
or nothingness, leaving this towering symbol of resistive strength from which those
who come this way may look upon its superb ocean foreground and coastwise scenes;
that sre excelled by very few of ths views from the readily accessible park head-
lands on the Oregon coast., In addition to the impressiveness of its physical
featurés, it possesses an individual cherm with gualities of appeal thet =et it

epart as e superior sits looking upon scenes of more than ordinery interest.



Looking northwerd, there is & particulsrly fine view of nsar and distant
surf bound shores end rock cliffs, backed by high slopes, steep and open, sloing
vhich the elevated highvay hes been cut, meny oleces in solid rock, forming a
shorelsnd plcture of exceptioinal scenic worth. Is the south, there is 2 streteh
of wide beach that reaches to the Devil's Punch Bowl.

This smell, high-resting park ares is one of Oregon's finest and most
appealing marine overlooks end observation points. HNature has creeted it for those
who enjoy the ultimate of pesce and nuietness vhen contemplsating o wide expanse of
sea or cttreactive shore. The turmdil of trzffic seems remote and subdued, the
sur{ is aimost nciseless, &snd csrefree birds wing by with a ouiet sedatenessz gs if
reluctant to disturb the serenity of this elysian scene.

In the eventide zs the tinted reys of the lowering sun are brillisntly
flooding the broad surface of the undulsting see, high-lighting the surf tumbling
upon the rock-bound shore on one side, or the weves rolling lszily upon the sands
of the othér, snd softly iliuminsting the backeround of grassy slopes and cvergreen
hills, there is formzd # picture that will linger long in the memories of its
beholders.

In these days of vigilent cosstal, defense petrols, as if to contradict
the auiet peacefulness of the scene, en slert, youthful coszst gusrdsmen appenrs.
Rifle in hand, he welks briskly to the forefront, nonchalently glinpses the civilian
visitors, znd with his ficld glasses carelully scrutinizes the sea and visible shore
line, then departs. In the overwater distsnce is the rising crescendc of a patrol
plane on its routine flight up or down the cosst and, perchsnce, & silvery blimp
may be seen, serene and majestic, &s in the neor distance it courses the shore land,
its observer closely scanning the depths. All these are grim reminders thet com-
petent authoritiss still consider it within the range of possibilities that the

realities of war mey even yet reach our fair ond peaceful shores to the disturbance
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of our ingenuous complacency.

Only & few minor improvements were mede in this smell perk by CCC members.
These were lendscaping, seeding end sodding end erecting the entrance signs and
monuments. The entrence toad end varking space were developed by the Stete High-

wey Depertment wzintenence forces. The guerd rail was erected by stete park forces.
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RECOMMENDATIONS FOR OTTHER CREST

ftee construction pleng for new highway at this noint, the seme coverins

recreationgl development.
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DEVIL'S PUNCH BOW

This is & tract of approximstely four and e helf ascres, @ portion of
which is in the platted townsite of Otter Rock, in Section 32, Township 9 South of
Range 11 West, W.M,, in Lincoln County, twenty-four miles south of Otis, » mile or
so from Otter Crest and nine miles north of Newport. Over four scres of this tract
was o gift to the state from F..W. eand Caroline P. Leadbetter, by deed deted April 24,
1929. An sdditional townsite lot wes purchased on October 18, 1935, in order to
round out the tract.

This park, which adjoins and includes 2 portion of the Dtter Rock tr»msite,
is of smell acresge but packed full of interest. The south and west sides are open
to the surging ocean waves. On the north side is a shallow, rocky indentetion, which
at low tide exhibits whet is reputed to he one of the finest marine gardens on the
Oregon coast. The principel netural feature of this park ares is the Devill's Punch
Bowl itself, which is situated in the rounded, rocky point thst merks the northwest
corner of the park. The surfece opening of the "bowl" is an irregularly shapped
opening sixty to seventy feet in diesmeter, its rim about fifty feet below the park
floor, with a depth of forty to fifty feet, its basse overflowing =t high tide, thru
# connecting underground tunnel end cevern thet, in gombination, resch clesr thru
this roack point in « general north &nd south direction.

The south opening is more or less of tunnel shape, too low in vlaces for
a tell person to stend erect, and is roughly ten feet in width. Ihe north eﬁtrance
is wide and high, assuming the form of & vaultad cavern, its sides and roof steadily
crumbling down es the heavy seas of storm periods, with their burden of drift, pound
and tesr at the rock wells, slowly but surely wearing these down end washing them
away. Thus, thru a long period of disintegration, there has been created here the

most unusuzl combinstion of a wavew-worn cevern, with & lesrge skylighted opening snd &



tunnel extension that resches sll ths way thru a seagirt point of rock.

This very much out-of-the-ordinary neturel feature is en object of much
interest to the park visitors, even on the Oregon Coast where there sre mony unusual
physiogrsphic features that are attractive to the many who travel the highwsys and
visit the perks. An opening found enywhere in the earth's surfacg, man-made or
natursl, excites the curiosity snd interest of the aversge humen end seems to arouse
his lingering cavemen instinct and, if it is en exhibit of nature's handiwork, =
well trodden pzth will lead to its portal. The Devil's Punch Bowl is no exception
to this rule, and it has become widely known as @& most unususl feature of weve crosion.

The rocky, rough-shored indentztion that opens widely to the ses on the
northerly side of the psrk ares affords splendid surf views =t high tide, and vhen
the tide is low, this basin revesls & rich marine garden displsy that ie of grest
interest to the visiting laymen end is highly regarded in scientific eircles. liere,
dereid the ses nymph, planted of his best end peopled this remsrksble sez gerden
with richly hued sfa urchins, sterfish and other echinoderms, crusteceans, mollusks,
odd smzll fishes end a wealth of marine plants, for the interest snd edification of
those who are prepared to explore its mysteries.

Southwsrd from this park peninsula, there is # long, very wide and smooth
send besch, becked by & high znd steep shorelend ssnd bsnk. From the psrk the
beach 1s reached by & Tlight of steps that do from the perk level, down the steep
slope to the beach, While not 2 pert of the park, the besch is used by a good many
park visitors who eveil themselves of fhe opportunity to play upon the sands and
enjoy the plessures it affor@s.

From the psrk front there 1s 2 brosd sez outlook, and e mile or so away
Gull Rock, a prominent bird rookery, lifts darkly fifty-six feet (U.8.C. & G.S.)

gbove tide. Southwsrd is Otter Hock, two miles or more eswey. This rock is of less



height end extent than Gull Rock, centering e long, psrtly submerged reef, with a
naorth snd south trend, which wss once ¢ vrookery for the much coveted, richly furred
ser otter.

The nsme, Otter Rock, is reminiscent of the days when keen eyed hunters,
with stesdy nerves and heavy, azccurate shooting, old Sharp rifles, ruthlessly
hunted these lordly sea animals for their ragal.skins. Once numerous, they sre now
very rarely seen along the Oregon Cozst. From the earliest deys of fur treding by
the Russisns in Alasks, and vears laster along the shores of British Columbie, lash-
ington end Oregon, otter gkins have b2en the most prized, and highest'priced
individuel furs obtsinable in this vest Pacifie fur region.

These richly pellaged ocean dwellers were once plentiful slong the Oregon
coest whoere many pelts were taken in serly deys, end they were still being hunted
elong the Lincoln County shores until in the late cighties of the last centwy.
Their sbundant presence in the past is indiccted by the frequent use of their name
in coastzl nomenclature,

The well-plenned improvements for this perk were executed by contingents
of CCC forces, detailed from the Yaquine Bay Camp SP-7, during the Fourth and Sixth
periods, October, 1924 to April, 1925, end October, 1935 to April, 1936. These
improvements were of the generol perk type, weter supply, drinking founteins and
other water needs, tebles and benches, ¢ fire plesce, rest rooms, sewage disposel
systeii, guard rell, tile line, foot treil ond steps bto the adioining beach, e con-
erete drain, sodding, and lineel and topogranhlc surveys.

The approsch rozd wes originelly First Street of the Otter Rock townsite,
which was improved and the parking space developed by the Highwey Department
maintenance forces.

The existing fzcilities sre adequste for the time being, but spece for



their expension is very limited. However, the conveniences and services gvrilable
in the zdjoining Otter Rock settlement will teke csre of any nerl inadequacies for
some time to come.

The ceverned sznd tunneled Devil's Punch Bowl, which geve this park its
name snd fame, is the outstending netural feature of Lineoln County. The esdjoining
marine gzrdens, which heve come to be so widely known in scientific cireles, are of
the best knownt on the Oregon coest. Altho not a part of the perk, the proximity of
the gerdens and the fect thet they are readily sccessible thru the perk =ares and
down the steps thnt reach to the cevern's tidal floor, does link them together snd
the combination gives this small park # prestige thet will be enduring. It is one

of Jregon's leading perk sssets.
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RECOMMENDATIONS FOBR DEVIL'S PUNCH BOWL

New railing and stairs are neecded ait the earliest possible time when
material and lebor are svsileble. The pathway leading to South Besch should he
enlerged for safety measures. WNorth of the park and extending to Otter Crest is
the finest Marine Gardens on the entire Oregon coast. 4 trail should comnect

these gardens with the Punch Bowl.
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YAQUINA STATE PARK

This now historic park srea is siturted between the north end of the high-
way bridge and the ocean beazch at the entrance of Yequina Bay, adjoining the city
of Newport, thirty-three miles south of Otis. This thirty-two acre trect, described
as being in Section 7, 8, 17 and 18, in Township 1l South of Renze 11 Yest, ¥.M.,
in Lincoaln County, wes & gift to the Stete of Oregon from the United “tates, thru
the Depsriment of Commerce, Lighthouse Service, by & revoceble deed, dated September
i, 1934. Title is contingent upon its continunus uge for highwey and psrk purposes,

.

reserving "to the Commerce, Tressury ond Wer Depezriments of the United States, the
right of ingress and egress snd to maintain thereosn such fecilities es thase deprrt-
ments msy requireY.

The old Yagquine Bay lighthouse, situated on & modest eminence fscing the
ocean and near the north side 2f the bay entreznce, is now the hesdqusrters for the
caretzker, who looks after all of the Lincoln County State parks. The building was
erected and the light put in commission in 1871, and discontinued in 1874, o yeer
after & new lighthouse intended for Cape Foulwezther was erroneously erected at
Yoquine Head.

This two-story, square and substantial old building, with the light room
on top of its center, is of rugged simplicity in its architecturel design, end
built with o stabllity that has been tested by the storms and stresses of seventy-
two years of exposed isolstion on this outlying, wind-swept point, where it has
been subjected fo the worst weather this section of the cosst hsd to offer. All
this time it has stood without noticezbly serious deterioretion, outside or in, and
is en enduring example of the structural strength that characterized the construction

of wood buildings for such purposas, in the esrlier days of Oregon's history,

"‘2?——.



The upkeep rnd preservetion ol this building in its present form, bescon
light end all, #s ¢ renascent gymbol of Oregon's historic past century, is well
vorth while, even imperative. Its obliteration would be a lementeble historical
loss %o thé park, to the community and to the Ftate.

Adjioining the park area is Newport, the principsl town of Lincoln County,
with = 1940 census population of over two thousend. Its snlendid@ Yzquine Bay and
adjecent ocsen besches have been populer resort aress for Oregon citiszens,
particular 1 y for those living in the vicinity of Albeny, Corvellis snd neigh-
boring ¥#illamette Veller communities, since the lete 1850%s. In the eorly deys of
trein service to the bsy aves, there were excursions, with clsm bekes and other
beach festivities thst ere only memories in these modern days of wmit sutomobhile
trips thet embrzce miles of cosst line.

It is told thet in the 186Q's, people visiting here fraquently mede round
trips to Sen Francisco on the schooners that wers then msking regular trips to and
froem the Buy City, the ses voyage reguiring five days eech way.

The fezquing Stzte Park hes no natursl physiographiec features that are
spectacular or particularly outstending. It does, however, have » fine frontnge on
Yaguins Poy and ulso touct.es upon the exceptionslly wide, smooth ocenn bench, miles
long, thet has msde this locslity femous s o resort ares, efter centuries of un-
disturbed occupztion by = strong, tribsl netiosn.

For untold y=nrs it was exclugively the home of the ¥s-ko-nsn tribe, who
occupled fifty-six esteblished villages, distributed along the bay end river from
its entrence to the ses, upstream to where Elk City now stands.(l) Moreover, they
hed their 2vn lengusge, traditisns #=nd ceremnnies which they ieslousgly gusrded, =nd

(1} Ore
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they held inviolste the integrity of their chosen "illahee" .where fﬁom stream, bey
#¢nd forest they obtained their needs in great cbundance, until the coming »f the
white man dissolved thelir home lind. tfver since the first white men ceme to the
Isquins Bay eres, it has been noted as & prime locclity for the teking of fish,
clems, crebs, snd the most delectable of oysters. In General Sheridan's memoirs, he
remerks that while ststioned on the Bsy in 1856, he never tired of watching the
weird, torchlight spsctecle of the numerous native women moving over the tide flats
in search of the crbundznt crebs.

vnen white men first ceme to Yaquine Bey there was selso @ grest sbundance
of the esculent nrtive oysters. In 186l it was discovered that there were many ex—
tensive beds of these luscious bivelves and a lucrative business vas developed,
gathering ané shipping them by schooners to Sen Frencisco, where they became the
luxury of the enicuresns of thoée dsys. The demsnd was so great that the originsl
beds were deplated end shipments cessed. In recent yesrs the beds heve been re-
stocked, but they are not the oyster of native origin that wes reted the very best
on the Pzcific Coest. The present day cotch, altho it does not squal the toothsome-
ness of' the originel stock, is of excellent quelity, and the demsnd is grester then
the supply.

Un the bay, where Sheriden watched with delight the flares of the natives
seeking crabs, there is now to be seen & fleet of modern, seegoing fishing craft,
coming, going or riding ot anchor. Freauently they teke interested visitors off
shore to fish or enjoy themselves watching for whales, porpoises or predatory herds
of see liomns.

ihen the fishing boats sre #11 st their moorings in the ending dey, the
bsy boasts ¢ richly colofful, fishing harbor atmosphere that gives it ¢ very pleesing
end attrective eppearcnce. The weter front of the perk, the elevated highwey bridge,

or its emple bridgeheed arees, sre all ventege points from which to view the chrrming
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scene of Yaguins Bay end ite fishing flest in the heightened coloring »f the sunset
hour.
Samuel Case, who wes the first white person to settle on Ysavina Bay,

camz thers zlonz in 18555. In his originel kome he housed end entertsined those who

[}

csme to the bay ez best he could. In 1866 he built the Ocesn House, which wes the
first resort hotel in recreation minded Newport and, so fer es known, the first in
whet is now Lincoln County. Two others, the Abbey House and Fountein House - gll

hotsls wers "houses" in those days — were built in 187L. While the others are no

longer existant, the Abbey House has‘been continuously serving trevelers, plassure
seekers and groups, ever since il was opened over seventy-two years ago.

The state paerk begins at the line of the highway right of way, near the
north end of the bridge. It fronts the bey for & distance of fourteen hundred feet,
and faces the ocean for twelve hundred feet. The entrance road leaves the highway
just north of the bridgehesd. The facilitated portion is, in psrt, on a low bench
at the edge of the bay, just below the lighthouse. This picnic srea hrs seversl
cemp stoves, & number of table snd bench combinations, resting benches on the bay
ehore, drinking fountsins and rest rooms. Some of the tsbles and stoves 2re in the
open near the bay front, others are in the shelter of the nearby pines. Norbthward
of the lighthouse znd facing the beach there is another plcnic area similarly
equipped. Despite the proximity of the town snd its many refreshment places, the
picnic areas are generally well occﬁpied end on week ends or specisl occesions sare
overcrowded with happy, pleasure seeking people who alweys seem to Tind enjoyment in
these surroundings.

The venerzble cld lighthouse thst gives distinction to the psrk, sometime
since called the "haunted lighthouse", no doubt so designated beesuse of the many
vwoodrats, attracts notonly park visitors, but slso meny who heve visited elsewhere
on the ocean beach #nd been intrigued by its historical significence and stories of

its spooky reputsation.



The traditions of this locality 25 &£ recreationel erez are of long
stending snd generetions of Oregon citizens, in lsrge numbers heve marched the
beach seznds, ceught crabs, dug clsms, built bhonfires and otherwise enjoyed them-
selves 1in thisz delightful Yequins Bey area for well on towsrd & century of tinme,
uhich is much of Oregon's civilized history. They first ceme on foot, »n horse-
back or with ox feams over Sheriden's trail, later by wegon or stege, then by rvril-
road and now by sutomdbile over paved roads. However they came, plessure nwaited
them in full meesure, znd the number >f vacationists who visit the Ysquina Eay area
is ever incressing, despite the fact thet it has no spectacular scenery nor out-
stzading physicsl features other than its charming bay and zlways interesting ocezn
beach. .

The gquiet bay, spanned by 2 beautiful bridge tﬁat 1ifts high shove the
vater, has its bosts snd fishing fleet riding safely at snchor inside the jettied
harbor entrance snd, ot the turn of the shore is the splendid, wide and long »Hcean

besch the® looks from the pzrk front into the evening sun, from close beside =

[yl

pleasant, hoaspiteble town. While not spectaculsr these are the principel attree-
tisneg yet, &s in the beech sres at the north end »f the county, the neaple congre-
gate here in great numbers, finding the locality sufficiently attractive for them
to return zgein end agein, to spend their vecation time of days or weeks in the
nlaces that have furnished them so much of seaside enjoyment in the past, as it
will in the future,

LEPROVAMENTS s

£11 the stzte park improvements mzde in Lincoln County, except the sur-
facing end peving of park rosds and parking spaces, were by wembers of the CCC camp
set up in Yaquine State Perk and occupied during the Fourth Period, Jctober, 1934

to Lpril, 1935 and the Sixth period, October, 19%%5 to April, 19%6, end have been
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listed under their respective job titles. All the work plans were subiect to the
usuel routine of being approved, supervised snd inspected by the National Psrk
Service office in Sn Francisco #nd the construction details were passed upon by
the technicians of thet Service.

The Yaquing Psrk entrance rosd, and parking spsces, were grsded by CCC
members. The surfscing end peving were done by Stete Highwsy Depsrtment Meintenance
forces.

CCC forces built one double stone letrine, 1946 linesl Teel of guerd reil,
installed four gerbzge pits, five drinking fountains,'laid 920 feet of woter nipe
to connect with Newport's weter system, five fireplaces were erected, fourteen sions
were placed, one stone monument with sign erected, twenty-eipht teble end bench
combinetione set up, six-tenths of 2 mile of park road built, four-tenths of a mile
ofrpark rozd lmproved, three quarters of @ mile of foot trsil built, thirty acres
landscéping, undifferentiated, Z,46% shrubs and trees moved and plented, 2,000
square yards of parking ares prepsred for surfecing, five =scres of campground
clesred, seven scres seeded snd sodded, a helf mile of linesl survey snd five scres
of topograghic survey.

Ihe defense forces prudently closed the park ares and its immeadiate
surraundings to =1l unsuthorized visitors eecrly in December, 1941, and reopened to

the genersl public zhout Mey 1, 1944.
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RECOMMZNDATIONS FOR YAQUINA BAY PABK

Imis psrk is heevily petronized and is in need of enlarged picnic
facilities. The parking sres on the north side should be oiled. A trail of
 permenent structure should be made down to the besch, A new letrine should bhe
constructed in the new picnic area. The present caretsker's house is becoming
weather unworthy and a new house should be constructed back in the timber away

from the trade winds.
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SEAL /JCK STATE PARK

Seal Rock is & small poark of three 9r more scres, situsted nine end a
half miles south of Newport end located in Section 25, Township 1Z South of Renge
1z Viest, w.il., in Lincoln County. A quarter of zn acre of this trect wos o gift
to the state from Lincoln County, by deed dsted Ociober 15, 1929. The remsinder
was purchased, deed date June 18, 1942.

Attoched to the park are three certain rock islands, nemed Castle,
Elephant and Isurist in this order from north to south. Thru the efforts of
Senstor McNary, these were granted to the State of Oregon by sn Act of the Seven-
tieth Congress (Senaste Bill 1197), epproved Fsbrusry 25, 1928, conditioned upon
being maintained in their present state "as natursl monuments or objects of scenic
interast". They =re in the same section, township and range es the park proper.

It is worthy of note at this time that an Executive Order No. 4774, dated
November 29, 1927, #nd signed by Calvin Coolidge, reeds in part as follows: "it is
hereby ordered that all unreserved vrocks snd vinnacles situated on the Pacific
Ocean off the coast of Uregon, be snd the same sre hereby temporarily withdremm
from settlement, location, sale or entry, except ss provided by said act, for
clessificetion and in aid of proposed legislotion. This order shell continue in
full force and effect unless and until revoked by the President »r by Act of
Congress".

This small park area is adjacent to the platted Seal Rock Resort and its
east side is traversed by the Oregon Coast Highway for most of its north and south
distence. The tract is roughly trianguler, the outlying corner, termineting et
and being a psrt of the picturesque Elephant Rock, the center of the three lsrger
ones with 2 holf dozen or so smaller ones =t either end.

A side rosd diverges from the highway end enters the prrk for a ghort
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distence and nesr its end is 2 wind-sheltered hollow, where there is e perk =tove,
The psrk srez is generally covered by the usual, dense coastal type of shrubbery

and depressed spruce trees to the outer edge of the wind-swept s>il deposit. Ele-
phent tock iz en elevried end elingsted extension of the suter end of the park
triangle, from which there is & splendid view to the north. In the immedirte fore-
ground is the high, monslithic Castle Rock and beyond is 2 mile long, curving rack
reéf, submerged and swash, which shelters the inner beach shore line from the welght
of the hesvy, riotous surf that creshes it from end to end.

Io the south, is the larger, Iourist Rock, of massive columnar basalt,
its top partly grassed, looming bulkily against its ncean background. Along the
curve of the inner shore there is s fine beach thet extends smooth and inviting to
the park limits. Just beyond there is en almost level, strotified sendstone forme-
tion, reaching from shore to the-black, pinnacled, outsidg barrier reef. Tourist
flock itself, accessible when the tide is down, offers good sea fishing from its
low, south extremity. If the tide has risen, the return trip mey present some
difficulties, but not impossibilities, in resching shore. However, for anyone well
shod, snd familiar with rough, rock-cliff travel, the rsturn would not be: nariloug,
To the sesward side of the outer reefs end some distsnce awey are two gull rocks,
which alweys seem t5 be crowded with thessa vayfarers of the ses.

While the park is not fecilitsted to any extent, the adjoining business
section of. the Sezi Rock village has refreshment places that are aelways available.

The careteker's estimeted record indicetes a meager sttendsnce in this
park, being the lowest of the recorded Lincolh County group. This is not at ali in
keeping with its scenic merits or locction. &Lltho small in acrenge, it hes a
superb view point thet overlooks some superior ses cosst scenery that 1z well

worth viewing by anyone who has an sppreciection of the seeshore in excellent form.
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RACOMMENDATIONS FOE SEsl ROCK PARK

llore picnic fecilities should be provided., A larger parking szrees should
be censtructed. 4 thoussnd feet more land is needed joining on to the north

boundary of the park. «lothing on the east side.
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WOOD SUPPLY TRACT

This wood supply tract, which has been designated es zn "Officisl Park",
is located in Section 20, Township 11 South of Range 11 West, W.M., contains forty
acres, of which thirty-eight and two one-hundredths scres were a gift from Lincoln
Gounty, the deed dated July 14, 1939. The small remainder was purchased to round
out the wood lot, which lies between Newport and Seal Rock, sstride the former
right of wey of the United Stztes Spruce Production Railwey, which is nesr the
Const Highway.

The tract is to be used for the growth of a future wood supély for the
vincoln County state parks, and for the present, no development of any kind is

contemplated excepting the promotion of tree growth far wond for park use.

W. h. Lengille
Stete Parks Histofian
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WALDPORT OCEAN %AYSIPE

This weyside, containing ¢ little more then ten scres, lies between the
Cozst Highway end hlses Bey sdjoining the town of Vsldport, in Section-l9, Tovmship
15 South af Henge 11 West, .M., Lincoln County.

This trasct was & gift to.the state from Maud C. and "Ym. P. Kesdy, by deed
dated April 20, 1937. A1l except o smzll ares =t the north end of the trect is sub-
Ject to tidal overflow.

This is one of the undeveloped Lincoin County weysides. The combined
parks, waysides, or other recreational areas in this county totel eighteen individual
tracts, s greater number of separzte units than is found in eny other county of the

stote, emphasizing the papulerity of the Lineosin County ares for recreetionsl

purnoses.
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ReCOMMENCATIONS FOR RALDPORT VAYOIDE

This is 5 wayside parking sres and should be kept only =8 such.
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SOUTH WALDPORT OCEAN WAYSIDES

This ocean weyside is @ nerrow strip of land, three quarters »f a mile
long, four hundred twelve feet wide at the north end and twenty-eight feet wide at
the south end, conteining nine acres. It lies between the highway end the shore
line, in Lots 2, %, and 4, Section 25, Township 1% South of Range 12 West, V.., one
mile south of Weldport, in Lineoln County.

The tract is undeveloned and there are no facilities of any kind. The
wide portion 2t the north end is the only place where facilities could be feasibly
esteblished. The right of way of the United States Spruce Production feilway,
built for heuling spruce timber for airplane meterizl for World War I, perellels
the highway on its east side.

The terrain is generzlly not rough, but fire hag killed o former covering
grovth of pine. The tract is fronted by a streteh of fine beach, that i1s sccessible
by e useblz roed at the north end of the perk. The trect is suiteble for an ex-

tensive end nleasing, future weayside development.
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RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SOUTH VALDPORT WAYSIDES

These are & unit of the general ocesn weysides between Vialdport end

Ischats and will be included in the general wayside development.
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YACHOATS STATE PARK

The Yachats State Park is the last and most southerly "Official Park"

L]
wholly in Lincoln County. Tt consists of twenty-six lots of vnrious sizes, sit-
vated in the west end of the platted towmsite of Yachats, with en aree of approxi-
mately two snd z helf acres, which fronts the ocesn znd also touches the north side
of the mouth of the Yachats River. Lot five of Block three, was a gii: to the state
from Chas. 4. énd Corinne &, Lounstury, the deed dated October 16, 1928. Tha asther
lots were purchzsed. All sre in Section 2/, Township 14 South of Range 12 est,
Voo, Lincoln County, twenty-three miles south of Newpart, and three and a aunrter
miles north of the south line of the county.

I'he oceusn side of the perk has & more or less steep, rocky front, which
is & noted locality for cstching several varieties of ses fish snd is very papular
with those who engege in this pastime. Such fishing, precticazlly within £ seacozst
town is a rare opportunity. Also the Yachats River vields good cetches of trout
ant¢ Szlmon, in seacson.

While the Yschats resort area is the most distant from the populated
centers of any in Lincoln County, it is quite popular with femilies who prefer the
quiet isolstion where all the natural edvantages of the ocean shore sre sveilsble,
with less of confusion from the over erowding that is so pravelent in the more
northerly besch resort zress.

The park fecilities sre limited, but this is not a serious matter because
of the proximity of the town and the fach thet this locelity is more or less =
family rescrt sresz where visits are pralonged.

There ere excellsnt sse views and attractive surf scenes which mey be viewsd
from the pzrk front resting benches. The bgach sres is limited.

The only improvements are e few seafront benches placed by the state perk
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RECOMMANDATIONS FOR YACHATS STATE PARK

Better latrine facilities should be provided. A shelter house should
be provided sgainst the winds. More benches sare needed. A road zlong tha Bay
connacting the park vith the highway should be provided. The vresent rond to the

park should be oiled.
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YACHATS OCEAN ROAD

thile this zrea has not been clsssified szs en "Officiel Park", its
iocation »nd possibilities for reerestioncl purposes are good enough to justify
mention.

The trect is & strip one hundred feet wide and apnroximstely three-
auerisrs of e mile long which diverges from the Cosst Highwsy st the south end of
the Yachats River bridge, follows the streem bank & short distsnce, then crurses
along the oceen shore o helf mile or more and egein intercepts the highway.

Thias generous see shore road right of way is & gift from the tquitable
Trust Compeny of Portlend, deeded to the State of Oregon, on march 11, 1931,
"...for the exclusive purposse of 2 public driveway for the benefit and plezsure of
the public and to continuously meintzin the seme eg such', The rosdway is located
in Sections 26, 27 end 34 in Township 14 South of Renge 12 Yest, .M., in Lincoln
County. The roesd has been graded and surfazced with crushed stone by State High-
way Depertment Mzintenance forces and is usable at 2ll times.

It is 2 delightful end plessing driveway, with ¢ right of way that hes
en sbundence of odszptrble spoce which presents » splendid oppoartunity for the
development of roadside picnic aress and resting pleces, in # getting that lends
itself most favorably far thils nurpose, on the very horder of the ocean.

Besides this described Yachsts Oceen Roed, there ere two other "Minor
Parka® end one "Rosdside Development Arse" in Lincoln County, listed as follows:
Alser Besy MNorth RBridge Head, contséining six #nd a frection acres, which were sc-
quired from Frenk d. Hilton, thru court erctiocn, under the right of eminent domein,
the finzl judgment doted June 17, 1938. This trzet 15 located in Section 18, Iown-
ship 13 South of Renge 1l West, V.M. Connected with the Hilton property, slia™tly
less then &n scre wes purchased to round out this bridge herd and preclude the in-

trusion of disfiguring bulldings or nuisance shops.
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The South Beach Wayside, a tract 9f twenty-six scres, is an eggregstion
of unoccupied lots and blocks in the townsite of Harborton, which are entirely un-
developed.

The Ben L. Smith Wayside is & roadside development area, being thet
portion of Lot 7, Block 1, lying west of the Oregon Cosst Highway, in the Cosst
View Addition to Yaquina City, located in United Stetes Lot 4, Section 7, Inwnship
12 South of Range 11 test, w.,, Lincoln County, Oregon.

This tract is a gift to the state from B, B. Smith, deed Ante June 8B,
1924, containing 0.0l5 of an acre, ; -

There has not been any development on this property to dste.
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RECOMMENDATIONS FOR YACHATS OCKAN RDAD

This road should be oiled.
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RECONMMENDATTONS FOR sL38£5A BaY SOUTH BRIDGE HEAD

This area shcould be kept in its natural state for bridge head protection.
Private property should be purchased on the Bay which sepsrctes the bridge head

property from the old ferry slip property now held by the Commission.
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CONCLUSIONS

The Oregon cosst from the Columbic River to the Cslifornie line is »
region that holds s weslth of surpassing seashore scenery and z wide range of recrea-
tional opportunity from one end tc the other.

There wre miles of ocean beach, with intervsls rich in cgate yielding
gravels. There are bays snd tidel estuzries holding the basins of sunken rivers
that teem with woter fowl of meny kinds. Numerous streams yield catches of the
most delecteble gome fish to be founa anywhere, and sea fishing from the rock shelves
of the headlands or wave-worn selients elweys yield e worth while catch of excellent
pen-fish, and from severzl herbors there ere boaots thet can be employed to take the
venturesome out up~n the broad, sometimes heaving, Pacific to try their luck at

deep ses fishing. The outlying reefs and rock islets are rookeries for countless

2]

sea birds or groups of ses mammals. There are slso ceves and csverns where these
seals and sea lions come to rest. They always srouse human interest snd neosle
enjoy watching them whether they are in the weter, their more domestic guarters on
the rocks or in thair caverned homes. Irails, and occssionally roeds, raach to the
headlsnds, high promontories and =ven to the summits of some of the lofty foothill
spurs that touch the shore, 21l offering megnificent pénoramas of sea end lend.
Dovn to the very ses shore are seen the trails of deer, the grezt Wepiti end, not
infrecquently, the foris of these greceful forest dwellers themselves. &nd, aslong
the grest length of this riot of charming scenery there sre meny homes of sll types
and classes thet reflect the trstes and mexns of their owmers.

Yhat is now Lincoln County is undoubtedly Oregon's primary, =nd rlso
foremnst, cosstcl recremtion:l nres. Not only did the very first of the vhite
setilers of the Wwillsmette Velley to meke & recreational visit t2 the Oreeon corst

pley upm the ocean sands of north Linesln County, but its Yequina Bey eres was
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regularly receiving plessure seekers before Oregon attained statehoad, There were,
no doubt, other people who followed the 0ld Szslmon River Indian trail used by tﬁe
early missionsries and thelr brides, after they had shown the way in 1837, Later,
others used the old toll rosds thst followed the Indian treil route, snd sntedated
the present besutiful Zzlmon River Highway. However, it wes not until this high-
wey and the Oregon Coast Highwry were complated end peved, thet the loter greet
concourse of people found their wey to the‘now populrr, north Lincoln County stote
perks end oceen beaches.

Citizens of the Villrmette Volley began vacationing in the Yeouins Bry
crae shortly after the energetic Lieutenant Phillip H. Sheridan, with his troops,
opened up e rough, oxcart trsil to the Siletz Indisn Reservation in 18%6. Soon
efter, the Willesmette Velley people began using this route to visit the Yaquins Eeoy
arse. Irzll and roed improvements kept pace with development and the procession
of recreationists has never ceased. This trail wss opened only 2 year or so after
the venturesome Samuel Case had, alone and uneided, esteblished himself on Yaquina
Bey. He wsas Lipcoln County's first civilized host.

Case seems to have realized very early the recreotioncl possibilities of
the Yequina Bey sres, which later on induced him to build = hotel for the accom-
m>dation of visitors in 1866. The business thrived, and in 1871 the Fountain House
end the Abbey House were built by others, a2ll facing the bey. The Abbey House hes
survived and is still in operetion. Meny of the esrlier Oregoniens, as well rs the
present generstions, heve enjoyed its hospitelity.

¥hile the resort hotel built in the late 185C's, on the beach just north
of the mouth of the Umpque Hiver, in Douglas County, was apparently the first of its
kind on Jregon's shores, it diseppeered soon after, probably in the devestating

flood of 1861, end no other was ever built, &% or near the mouth of this river.
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The popularity of the Yaquin: Bsy locels for vacetionists is thus of =
long £nd continuous stending, thet is bssed upon its natural, elluring features.
There is even evidence of its primitive attractiveness in the fact thet the very old
Ye~ko-nan tribe had & larger number of permsnent villages on the Yaquins river end
bey, than any other group of the cozst Indians had elsewhere. They were stroﬁg end
self-relient enough to defend the integrity of their "illahee", as well s meintsin
their racizl and tribal characteristics end the purity of their own language, up
tc the coming of the white man. The physicel conditions snd the abundance of food
that maae the old Ye-ko-nens & herdy, self-sustaining tribe, are the same basic
Tactors that have built up in this locality » community of prosperaus, hospltable
people, who have mede of ifs surroundings #n enticing, long enduring, recrestional
area. This recrasstionzl appeal hes been reflected in the good, year to verr,
tttendance record reported for the Yaquina Stete Park, up to the time of its baing
closed to the public by the cosst defense suthorities in December, 1941. I+ was
reospencd in 1944.

tihile the Yaquina Bay area is without spectacular scenic fertures, the
bay itself is an sppealing bit of water, that is given 2 pleasing, meritime touch
" by .the presence of the many trim, seagoing fishing Mats that harbor there. The
edjoining wide, lengthy ocean besach nhas long been populer and the gueaint, historic,
old tovmn of Newport is also attrective. These festures make up a combination of
engaging, pesceful charm, where visitors find comfort snd relaxstion in = locelity
thel for several generastions hss lured vecationists agein end again to this in-
viting bay and its environment. |

For the lest few years the Lincoln County coest area, as s vhole, has
uncoubtedly been the most populer recreationel section of the entire Oregon shore-

lend.
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Altho the attendance rcports of the careteker of this county's state
parks zre estimated, not actual counts, there can be a considerable allowsnce mede
for possible over estimates snd the record will still show e higher rete of
sttendence for Lincoln County then is shown for any other coast county.

Wny so meny move people visit there then go elsewhere on the Oregon coast
is a question thet frequently arises. MNearness of the county's splendid unrth end
beaches to the densely populated Portland-Salem area is probebly the principal
factor. Also, the drive from these populated sections is = pleésing onz, over good
highways, with beautiful and entertaining, rurel weyside scenes. There is on array
of inviting sm=zll towns elong the way, with here and there e whining sewmill
punctuating the silence, hefore reaching the heavily forested section of the Szlmon
River Highwey, where it enters the H. B. VenDuger Forest Corridor, & restful stretch
of veautiful, state-owned, primeval forest, before emerging upon the cosst to
connect with the Oregon Coast Highway at Otis, at the very north end of Lincoln
County. The entire drive from either Fortland or Selem is one of diversified in-
terest snd plessure, to sey nothing of what sweits at its coastal end.

After lesving Otis, & golf course asppears, snd then begins a series of
homes and smell businesses of 21l kinds, with meany ceterers, and refreshment places,
with conveniences and minor diversions, all adiscent to the beaches. All these are
reedily aveilsble along the eight or ten miles of highway, which closely parallels
the cogst line, with 2 few diversions, from Otis to Gleneden. T@his eection fronts
& splendid, wide hbeach thei enterteine hundreds, rometimes thoussnds, of pleasure
seekers on week ends end holideys, snd in & sesson no doubt ettrncts o greater
number of people than assemble in & like distsnce sny where along the Orezom Cocst.

The vacationists seeking enioyment in thz Yzquine Bey section, thirty odd

miles south of Otis, are mostly from the upper Wwillsmette Velley. These valley
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people have long bzen pertisl to this bay oree, which seems to offer e greater
veriety of recrestionsl opportunity than is found in the north end of the county.
However, neither of these locelities heve in their midst eny of the superlative
scenic featuree thst mark many other sections of the coast, yet their beaches
sttrect and hold throngs of people, when the state parks outside of Lincoln County,
even the best faciliteted ones, entertein & fer less complement of visitors.

The state parks that touch the ocesn shore between Newport and the beaches
at the north end »f the county, ere splendid exhibits of readily sccessible, rugged
coast scenery end sre vell worth visiting. For several years they heve shown a
very high, estimested, sttendsncs record that has consistently been fer grester than
the astimstes repirted for eny of the other corstal stete parks which sre individuall
¢s picturesque and ettractive, much better fscilitated, but more isslated and awey |
from zany largely attended sand beaches.

when a half dozen or so of state parks have reported over fifty per cent
of the state wide park stiendence, even when so well favored énd conveniently lo-
ceted ss these, there must be some reason for such & concentration of pleasure
seekers slong this short stretch of a lengthy cosst line. There is little doubt
that the high stats park attendance reported for this smell group of parks is, in
& considerable measure, stiributeble to the proximity of the popular Yaquine bey
¢nd sdjoining oceesn besches, end the béaches thet rttract so many to the north end
of the county. qu, it hes been noted that the high count dsys were concurrent with
the unusual numbers that visited these two prominent beach sections on week ends or
special dasys. On such occesions meny cruise the highweys from beach to park, park
to perk snd sgain to their berch, and when these repetitive visits are cll reported,
it gives &n exaggercted estimete of the ectuel nuﬁber of visitors in the area con-

carnea.
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fluman beings hsve an inherent, ages old, fondness for the seachore. How-
ever, from the arctics to the tropics, all around the world, it is on the send
bezches where they have alweys foregathered for their plessure, regsrdless of
whather they were untutored aborigines or sophisticated moderns. No matter how

spectaculer or scenically picturesque sn ocean cliff or hesdlend may be, nor how
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xﬁansive or impressive its outpost view, nc one ever saw 2 large, lingering ag-
griogation of pleasure seekers congregate upon or about them. The crowds are alweys
upon the beaches.

The Oregon ses front has a very unusurl and remarkabls displey of rugged
coest, scenery slong its entire length, yet few, very few, peosples sre seen on the
hesdlends, promontories or perks that are not renched hy automobile. The grest
diversity of' sppesling scenery th=t mey be seen from the comfort of & pessing auto-
mobile, with occesionel stopé for the outstanding scenes from the better view
points from the stete pasrks, or psuses on the frequent overlooking highway turnouts
are, to & grest meiority of people, a satisfying display of the rugged, cosstsl
scenery. Viesw pointe, nesr or distent, that zre only accessible by treil heve
little or no appesl to those who are not clothed or shod for foot trevel. For
their smusement they go to the sand beaches, to zssemble with and enjoy the com-
penionship of the pleasure seeking numbers of people they find congregated there.

khile it is e splendid ideslism to believe thet the great number of
people wha go ﬂo tne Oregon coast ere drswn thither by the sbundant and richly elo-
quent scenery, this idea is eonfounded by thé zpperent fect thet the Lincoln
County send bezches entertazin more thousands of people then ell the other resort
areas and parks of the Oregon coact combined. There sre no actusl stetiztics to
affire >r deny this statement, other then the previously cited cstimates submitted

]

by the psrks ceretsker for the half dozen »r s2 of state perks that lie rlong the
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shorelend hetween or neer the mentisned principel besch sress. Giving these
figures due consideration, the question arises as to whether the narks drew the
crowds whoy found thelir wey to the beaches, or wvice veréa.

Casusl sbservations in this ares leed to the belief that the beachas, an
ettrection before the state parks were established, are the drawing cerds, the
beach attendence supplemented by the presence of the elluring perks disposed slong
the shoreland sdjacent to snd between them, making the one a concomitent of the
other. The parks do attrzct meny wh> seek their quieter seclusion znd the more
private enjoyment of their repzsts. Others visit them briefly, one after snother,
to view wnd asdmire their verious scenic features, snd there is always an element
vho, from curissity, move restlessly from one perk to another and back sgein,
each park in turn being credited with their visits. To that extent the repnrts
exeggerste the number of people in the area thet always far exceeds the reported
ettendance for similarly featured parks, which are gpsrt from the crawdad beaches.

These conditisns suggest that the perks near these well attended beaches
~will, in the future, require more extensive picnic aress, and cympersbly more
focilities to care for what will be sn ever increesing influx »f visitors from the
bezches, to meny >f whom the psrks will bs hevens of restfulness, with suoortunity
for & perind of quiet end relaxstion vhere thare 13 more of seclusinn, greater
comfort end mare conveniences, "fer from the madding crowd",

There is v questisn but that Lincoln County is, and will continue t>
be, the leading resort zres >f the Jregon Cosst. \Men sur normal wey of living and
travel is restored the first suting seasin thet fyllows will see » grest upsurge of
visitors to the cosst eres, perticularly Linesln County, which will greetly svertax

the present psrk fecilities. This need should, if poassible, be provided for in
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zavance, 1f the resulting grester park sttendence, byth locel and out of atste, is

considered desirable =nd t» be encoursged.
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